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- NOTLS -

The comments made o the individual structures
covered in this volume are based purely upon the
Architectural features visible ang the quality of
the building as it now stands.

The use of "appears to be" - "early to midg" -
"turn of the century" - etc., is due to not yet
having had the opportunity to examine each ind ividual
structure on the interior,

HILLSBORO is listed in District Humber 8, Para-
graph 8-J, Short Hill Area, by the Division of State
Planning and Community Affairs in their December
1972 "Critical EZnvironmental Areas". In which among
other things they state "unsuitable for intense deve-
lopement".

Permission to use any portion of this volume
for the purposes of sale and/or profit, will have
to be granted solely by the Copyrisht holder, John
G. Lewis and/or the Virginia Historic Landmarks
Commission with their joint agreement.

Reference to VWPA Forms is for identification
on which go with what property. Infametion as to
dates of construction in these is not accurate.




- RaCULLRKDATIONS -

L. If the owners of these properties are interested,
a program of Hasements should be embarked upon, on properties
not only in the Town, but on those on both the east angd west
end approaches to the Town. This is espically essential in
order to preserve its present rural and uncluttered quality.
Thus preventing the spreading of commercialization which has
wrecked the approaches to so mny Toms already. Quiet family
run commercial operations could easily be accomodated in
some of the exis%ing structures, as has been done in the past.
The Hill Tom liarket and Filling Station to the west of it
should be encouraged to remain.

2. Public Facilities, espically Water and Sewer Systems
(or "Pollution Control Projecgs") sﬁould be limited like the
village of Waterford, to serve only the existing structures
and available lots which now exist within the incorparated
area of the Town, and which are now legally recorded at this
time.

3. All future exterior alterations or additions to the
existing buildings, or construction of new buildings, should

- take into consideratlon their period, scale and that of the

neighboorhood. Such alterations, additions or new construction,
should be of a compatable scale and material, with any new
structures being either well designed period or contemporary

in style, scale and proportion,.







The Town of Hillsboro is one of the most unique of «
Loudoun County's historic areas, not only for its numerous
field stone dwellings, some of which date from the 18th < -+
century, but also for its picturesque setting in the gap -
of the Short Hill mountains. The steep slopes rising on
both sides of the Town along with the North Fork of the
Catoctin Creek on ifs southern boundry, not only provide
great visual quality to the area but mve protected it
from growth and developement. Froviding today an unspoiled ). ..
quality of weathered stone, with a variety of white painted \*'

DRt R
é‘ '\'

porches enhanced by a backdrop of ancient wooded hills.
Hillsboro is located on a portion of William Fairfax's -
& Pledmont and Shennondale lianor grants from John Colvill in
~ the 1740's, which was later conveyed to John Hough, one of , #-~ ="

Loudoun Countys famous mill owners, and lies within the )
boundries of the 150 acres which he conveyed to his son
Mahlon Hough in 1788,

As in the instance of many other Towns and Villages
,,,,,, ‘ in the Qounty, Hillsboro centered and expanded around the
C i1l of John Hough. About 1814 he sold this to Elisha
Janney, who's sons James C. and Aquila Janney agreed to
take down the log mill and erect a new stone one in 1837,
Prior to his arrival,Elisha Janney had been a neighboor
and close friend of George iashington and was appointed
by him as Flour Inspector at the port of Alexandria, Virginia.
According to a WPA Survey Form of the 1930's,the stone mill
was seven stories high with a gable roof covered in slate,
(:; 60'X80'. It was a VWheat and Manufacturing mill which made \
g fine flour, meal,and also ground Gypsum for use in plaster | pm
and to be sowed broadcast over the fields in the spring of )
each year as a fertilizer. '

The Eillsboro area still abounds with a large number
of native families who have remained since the days of
settlement, of ten on the original land grants to their
ancestors. ames which appear on early deeds - rotts,
Thompson, Grubb, Tribby, damerley, Copeland, Virts, Crim,
Shoemaker, Everhart - can still be found all through the
vicinity, and two 18th century houses, the Copeland,Iome-thMw\
stead and the James' "Possum's Rest", belong to/direct
decendants of the oriziral builders. \ ‘ Lot
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The first record of settlement in the Hillsboro area
is a Fairfax County Deed.showing that in 1748, David Potts
leased 866 acres on the "Kittoctin Run"“ from Catesby Cocke . .
for five Shillings paid in hand with the Right of Purchase =~ ~
and an annual Rental of one Ear of Indian Cord": The present
home of Raymond and Lloyd Potts is near the original site
of that of David Potts, and the o0ld Potts Cemetary are still
located on this land.

Ope of the first recards of any a_ctivity in the area was
the twice monthly meeting of the Gap Quakers, held in David
Potts' house in 1755. In 1788 a substantial stone ileeting
House was built near the western end of the Town (on the ilorth
side of Route 9) on two acres deeded to the Trustees of the
Yeeting by Mahlon Hough. By 1804 the Fairfax lfeeting minutes
noted that the Gap ifeeting was a constant source of worry due
to dissension, disorder and "the great deficiencies of the
Gap Friends in several particulars", was small, and by 1805
it had been "laid down" (discontinued), by its parent organ-
ization, the Fairfax lleeting, The building was for sometime
used as a Achool and then later taken down. llany graves nereby,
marked only with a fieldstone, remain at the site, as well as
the Grubb burial ground enclosed by an Iron Fence, and the
massive stone steps which led up to the leeting House.

No mention of the area would be complete without reference
to the lcIlhaney family. Although not Quakers, John and his
wife Sarah, a Stuart, fled Scotland in 1745. Landing at York-
town, they eventually settled in northwestern Fairfax, later
to be known as Loudoun County, on a tract of land east of
Hillsboro on which the farm of Roland T, Legard is now located.
John became a large landholder, a respected citizen and was
commissioned by the Governor as High Sheriff of Loudoun. His
sons John and James were 2fficers in the Revolutionary War.

At one time James owned nearly 9,000 acres extending from
Hillsboro to Lovettsville and another 4,000 acres on the Goose
Creek near Lincoln. At his death in 1804, the family fortunes
were dissipated, and all decendants have since left the County.,
The old home was apparently torn down about 1870, but the
eIlhanney graveyard where John fcIlhaney is buried remains

on the Legard farm, surrounded by a stone wall.

Edward Thomgson, a Quaker who lived near the Gap of the
) vre . 9. . b
hort Hill by 1754, kept a Tavern or ¢rdinary which was
atronized frequently by none other than George VWashington
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brother Samuel washington, in what is now Jefferson County,
West Virginia. No doubt he was the Vestal Gap Road's most
illustrious traveler.

1t is known that this road, the present State Route 9, AN
was in existance some fifty years before State Route 7. Running /.
from Leesburg past Williem iains "Dry ¥ill", thrcugh what is N

now Clarkes Gap, following the apprroximate way of Route 9 e

through Hillsboro and on west over Vestals Gap in the Blue Eidge \}ha
mountains, crossing the Sheonandoah River at Vestals, or Keys /
Ferry, and on to Charles Town, West Virginia.

Although there were mills and dwellings in The Gap in the
last quarter of the 1700's, the fown of Hillsboro (spelled .
Hillsborough until its Incorporation in 1880) was not formelry
established until 31 December 1802, when it was glven acknowledge-
ment by Act of the General Assembly "on 25 acres already divided
among a score of owners".

H'l

The first mill and millers house at The Gap was shown on
a plat of "Tayloe's Kittoctin Lands", which is dated 1758. This
is probably Butchers mill refered to in early deeds at the site
of the later Woolen mill, converted to this manufacture by
Henry Gaver in the 1850's, It was located at the east end of
the Town just west of where County Loute 718 crosses the
Catoctin Creek. :

About this same time John Hough was building his log mill,
already mentioned, upstream from Butchers mill, which became
known as "The Gap M'?ls". His son iahlon Hough, one of the
Trustees of the Town, sold many of the early lots there after he
acquired the mill and 150 acres witn it. By the early 13800's
five mills were operating on the Ilorth Fork of the latoctin Creek
from Hillsboro west.

Joseph Martin in his ™A llew and Comprehensive Gazetteer.of
Virginia and the District of Columbis™; cated(1836) mentions
*XiIlsborough as being on’the public road leading from Harpers
Ferry to Leesburg..Four mails a week are received at Hillsborough.
It contains 30 dwelling houses, 3 merchantile stores, 1 .lethodist
house of worship, 1 Academy, 2 flour manufacturing mills, 1 tavern
and a temperance scciety. The merchants are a tanner, sadcler, toot
maker and shoe manufacturer, tailor, hatter, cablinet maker, two
ragon makers and a tlecksmith, The population is 172 persons;
one of whom is a physician".
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Hardesty's Historical and Geographical Encyclopedia of
1883 notes that the Town consists of "137 inhabitants with two
churches, liethodist-Zpiscopal and liethodist-Zpiscopal South.
Two free schools, one white and one colored. There are four
general stores, one flour mill, one wollen mill, and numerous
shops". The first church in the area was built at the east end
of Town on land given by Michael Arnold in 1830. It is still
known as Arnold Grove liethodist Church and has an active
membership.

Had plans for the Alexandria, Loudoun and ZHampshire Railroad
not been changed after the Civil War, and the Loudoun Branch of
the Manassas Gap Railroad zone into bankrupfsy, Hdillsboro might
have been serviced by one or both of these. The former chose to
go from Clarkes Gap through Hamilton, Purcellville and Round
Hill to Snickersville, later known as Bluemont, and over the Blue
Kidge to the coal fields in Hampshire County, West Virginia.
Construction ended at Bluemont, thus providing it and the other
Zowns with access to the summer boarding trade and commercial
expansion, but leaving Hillsboro by-passed and isolated,

Al%hough an advantage to the other fowns at the time, this has
Egc??e a decidely favorable factor now in the preservation of
1e Town,

A young man from Hillstoro who was a freshman student at
Hampden-Sydney College some seventsyears ago wrote in part; "The
little Town of Hillsboro in which I live 1s situated in a Gap
in one of the ranges of the great Blue Ridge mountains. On two
sides rise steep heavily wooded mountains, while on each of the
other two the Town looks out on a fertile valley, wherein nestle
comf ortable homes and productive farms. It consists of but one
street over which great oaks and maples interlace their branches
making a tunnel of foliage which is cool, shady and restful on
hot summer days. Liost of the houses are stone or brick, with here
and there green yards, most of which are full of flowers. The
water used in this Town is unsurpassed. High upon the mountain-
side with no human habitation about, a great spring gushes out,
and the water is conveyed through pipes to two public hydrants
on the street and also to private homes. The surrounding country-
side is the most beautiful one can amagine. It 1s very rolling,
with rich fields containing either atundant crops or fat cattle,
with here and there a streatch of woodland and the Blue Zidge
meuntains rising as a background for all. The people are good
plain country people, good hearted and hospitable™,




Hopefully in the future Zillsboro will be spared the raveges
and desiruction of so called transportation."improveuents", and
can continue to maintain the vleasant unspoiled rural character
for generations to come to enjoy, as it has been passed down to
us. There is no question that the historic and highly sensative
environmental qualities of the area should be preserved and
respected. Unfortunately it is the nature of certain people with
limited ability, aided by reams of senseless regulations, to
"improve" (?) such places that have existed without their
interfearance for one hundred years or more! Thus the Gap shall
face from now on constant threats to its obliteration without
a continual vigil of all its concerned citizens.
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